EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2025 30
UBS
UBS Management (Cayman) Limited

Director, Brian Burkholder
1104
309
P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, George Town, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands

03 6775 1000
UBS

(UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) -US Dynamic Growth)
50 7,470
2025 31
149.39

1/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

UBS
(UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) - US Dynamic Growth)
UBS

UBS

50 7,470

3.30 3.00

2025 10 2026 30

2/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

https://www.smbc.co.jp

https://www.smbcnikko.co.jp/
M

S.A.

2021 28

12 24

3/221



S.A.

UBS

100.00

5,000

2021

2021

4/221

10

10

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

JSDA



10

2014

UCITS

U.K.

50

2013 12

UBS

2000

I US$

5/221

2021

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MSCI
us
I
2011
UCITS
ACI
26
95497



2000
2013
2014
2014
2014
2021
2021
2024

12

11
12

6/221

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOO OO
Oooooooooooooooooonon(elsss)
OO0oOdOoOoooooooooooodn
| A~ G
UBS =2t +

RS () T

] it ]
UWSHEAFIwd - Fr—2 AoE=TR s T -
B FEE
(77w FOSREE= L
LITERFE)
REMLIT =
ET
== ¥ e
22 % %oz i
BSw 2255 A 1 b (=sspE
(A=) VigdwR ZUFw - bIRT4 (4w
R
(77 FOBEDEM - T8,
IO RET - BEL) (77w FOEREEETS)
sk AR - o
s i R
RTBERRG | BREw U
firthsB — ARLEHIERSE N {E iy
_ - - : - TS NTEH
BSESHRZE | |HASHEHERRG R
N SMEGEEEEEE#FEEE ST enud LT
(77 FORTHEE = SN
#75) _
(77 KOs (7w KOEE - S5EHE
E_?_ B EE % FA7EFE. TEETEATES
WX - BEELE B IUEEDFREET
F5)
— S ERET —
7Ly b e R A
et
x EniE
REARzRE (77 FOEEERERD Lo
BRI - YRR

71221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2rE BANRIFUE BRNRaE

FAUDZ - FIU—

RS = =t UE:’I-J&J.H*
@i FIARIFTAL - oA S A—=Trm s
( *’L’f ) usﬁ‘—[rag-ﬁ.]-ﬁ:; g;n-: o LIATTPUR 1o

- IUSs2352R)
FARSYERANETREA -
. | -
UBSTRIA HEDHEE
(a4 UsFul IR

ALS PRy TRV

i3

UK USFul
;{Eﬁ) BHFEuRT 2% T A
i =it Ty | L TR
AQ

3 —

IS T/ FOEAEEERAE L THUICRSET. L= T. D7/ RO BN EE RS2, XEO
HILEBWET,

8/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

UBS

(UBS Management (Cayman)
Limited)

(Elian Trustee (Cayman)
Limited)

2021 28
S.A.
(Nomura Bank (Luxembourg)
S.A) 2021 28
UBS 2024 27
2021 10
2021 10
2024 27
(UBS AG, London Branch)
2021 28

JSDA

9/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

UBS
UBS Management (Cayman) Limited

2025
735,000 735,000 10,980
2000
2024
735,000
CH-8001 100
45
2025 31
149.39
2025 14
1925

10/221

50



21

30

150

493GT

31

31

11/221

1106

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(KPMG LLP)



26

198

12/221

IV

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

13/221



@)
()

2014

UCITS

10

U.K.

14/221

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2011 UCITS



EDINETOOOO

o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

I US$

I 777FOBER

RENVICELLTHREOSHESES IFRIC EBLTUVS  RENERENF TE3RROHKIE
FERANKREL EREEOHRRERZICEBBLET.

| 77V RO4SE

n FCKEHEXZRENTRENREL. FRNCGEERNIBETEIARROPTH. JUAEE
OB A ERICHEBRELET.

P BRENKTFRORENGERE ABERODICAS EF D7 AUHNY - 2YFaU—-
A VNARAI S RRUAUS AT (BITF JACHEVWNET . ) BTNET,
s ACIBIN = ABROEESRIAELEXBORIIRERSHTT .
EENEESEIGEON AT LR BN EEREREORBLICT s g T T ETD .

WIFWE FT TRy A TERLET.
wHemE. RBEEFIC LTk, FREOESEERH TE=E0ESHEUET.

I B Et

BRIELUTHEFITHEVWFETY . LEL . BESHORBICAUDERETOIIENENET,

# PR, BREOYSERESETHLBSLFOSHIC N T TR, FIET2380TIEUET A

H#HECHTONSBS. FRASE0OE A @EIc LT, Sis0—8F mld S50, BENIC o0 —SRh L ELIC
YT e EUET. Bails0OR A B0 7 r/FOBRRERICEY, HESE LU BRI 1 OM U HEE
EnE Er - BSEEE T,

15/221



@)

16/221

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

200 250

(b)

ESG
ESG

10



10

10

20

17/221

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

A= F oL a1

EAR Ve PRUR U Fa— USTA—HA R A /=g - T4 F 7V
IFERESF DT (1 USSO5 2} ) - - i

bd eyt bl Skl Al T ILS U RiES— T TERO T L SIS EER A O T - T UE
EROER# EHri R E YA S BIAENSEEOE P Hh DlEr @R -7 Ut A0
EEERLT MSCIHETO—2 AV Fud 1E A& b—F )l U =R T &
CEEBRLET.
FERENS METrsemEREEIFHCRENT HEFREHS| SN TLEKE PEOELR LU
UL %
REA® 77 FIEm A0, 85% 19 (Gifhc #HmE B2 BEIRE)
RSO URE GRS VR EHR R ET AN BAEE 16750 M S

EBEhElLT,

F M - S8 NS 7 EOEICAET A LUEN. S SUICHRMER—F 71 U4
SR NS LTINS RET S E RS U &8
BUACNCIREEN SV T OB RS SUEES

LS PR IRIAVE UK USFuk

AR T ED

MRt

BENR T FED AC
BT TR B 77 FOB RS TH /0T - Plyb  TRTAVE UK USFy L EROEEGEE
EEEACICEELTLET,

JSDA

10
10

10

50

50

15

18/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2011 UCITS UCITS

U.K.

<ACIDHIE>

: -ACIE, /Y74 —T Y2 BROBAEFL, @B
% American Century #micH{Ls 3 E8HAHTT.

7 Investments® 1OSBEITRENS X —UMNAVYR - YT 4 TR
TNTLR EREEREEH2.620#E)L (#41
K CDEUET

miu EEE FO— LS
1958% #1,4001 9

W AR BRIO07Tviat e
#2,6 20511 #9413:0) 207%

(1) 7—2320245% 1 2BFRE.
(2) BERERBERE RO BEL— R (1K R~1L=158.18M)
cm

(A7) ACIKD 7— 9% BICUBS{ERE

19/221



)

UBS

S_A.

UBS

UBS

20

1996 2004

2000

20/221

2006

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2014



200

2025

BESHES

|

LRNESaRS
R ORETOEART
BT OEROER. KE.[B5S

T 1

pudzzhi ot =
EROMITIERIZ LTS
i e R

T 3

EFBENEEICSI 28
ERNHE I EDEROETY
TN & ERLICHREE. RES

-~

T3

ERBSE-F—L
FriFERMSICE D S AN E AL BRI
BPRCHT S MR U RIESE NS 0TI TR S,
Tr Y FORR WEEROENREE

|

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PR SRS AR &
EREatioEEERchEs
AEIEHSCO S ERUESED
A SHERELICITE, TON I
HD (RIS Ol
EESE RS~ OMEEEER
DERNIRES

37547 A LBEERE
BT HROSE BSRR
FERTICE T35S RO
WRROKEE. JESE

_[

ERTOY 709 HESCMT 2ERAS
ER/ CFr == L AE O, il s OFkE

21/221



10

16

10

2022

15

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0.005

JSDA

50

21

22/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

23/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

24/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

¢

@

(D

©

25/221

(b)

(a



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

26/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

27/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2163 12
Q)
3,000,000

(i)

@

28/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(b)

2020 11

29/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30/221



(a

(c

O

31/221

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

32/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

33/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

34/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

35/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

36/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

37/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@
&) ®

4
®

38/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

UCITS

39/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

ESG

ESG
ESG

ESG

ESG

40/221



(a

¢

ESG

@

41/221

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

ESG



(@

42/221

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

UCITS EU

43/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

| 2E1HER

TEREOTS2EF. 7 /RERROBAEISAZERNICHB TESLSICERLIZDOTT .
BOISTGBESERICRIIEMMER (ERRICE I IE 1 FMOMEZEE) DTS - BX -
BV, ?.T-'Z«’I"*Hdilffﬂlﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁ&ﬁi ALDWTERRLTVWET.

5 J7P U/ RED RN EET
‘ﬁér‘%ﬁl‘r Er I Dé.‘:' "r@ ﬁfﬂiﬂi?" YR MeE== D HrEs
(HEIL) {Z020EAH 20257 H) {36} ] (2020ESH 202587 H)
200 80 80
IR L S ST e | I SRRREL R i
43
s R 40 I 11289 L i
B~ - 20418 % o o | amere N
0 . . . 0 ] ~ I-‘+ri~i,,1i.-l—jl2
i ER)-Ba B F M L RS
-0 40T !
&0 €0
2020/8 2021/8 2022/8 20238 0248 2025/7 TrvE Bt R HEEE SRR REER HRER
SERNINTEE (1588) .
o T R R 1 (127 SRS (1) sl aBAE <BNE

HEMMERT. BEEETHIHNLETTHEXNT RIS 212, FREBMOSAFCR T 3ER £MO
LET LT HECEEUEES, FiiMIRGS WEROTSE-BAE- BNMEEETRLEEDTEHY,
sl ET, TPURERBNEREISAEERNICHETES

#IPVRE, SR ETLEBLWTFECEY, CNEToics &IEERLTLEDS. oL, Zr v REER 1 S8
DFILWERIE 0, HESEIER | D3N E WMEENSESTULES,. BEBLENY TESEE
IR MASO 10N gRE S-S LG FERAL TV ET. ETOREISAF 7B BR
=7, HEEERUER A

<SHEISAOERCONWT>

B #F # - -« SR (TOPX) @A)

SEIEEE - - - MSTI-KOELUSAL - T2 2 (B2 CGERIL~<—2)

FEE - - - MO IX—22 - =T vl 1 T 7 A SR CERL—3)

BHEEMR - - - FTSEBEEHRA /T vIZ ERILA—-2)

Yo [ER - - - FTSERRSREER -/ 7 w7 2 BERIL<—2)

FEEWN - - - FTSERBETREER- - FulZ FRiL~A=21)

HEEHOEHL. EEFEROBEL — o iU EIL BN THRUFT,

% FECISMIS., FactSet Research Systems Inc.(FactSet Research Systems Inc.i3. B SRR (TOPX) @250
EFRETHIPAET S, MECI-KORKUS AL 2 F o232 (B2 BERFILA=2) a5 INC s MECIT T —
S b of T I AR (R — ) EWEC) INCAS. FTSEBEER > T T LB ~—2)
EFTSE Russellbrs, FTSEHRTERE- ~ Fod 2 BERIL—2)EFT5E Russellh o, FTSEF EETH B EW
AT I (HFILA—Z)EFTSE Russellis, FNFNRELTULSLEDIETYT. BB . S EHICHRSEEE.
M ESEO—OEA I YRR EES CREBLTHYFT ) AUEBLTLWET. I FE L TFUBSIE.,
FORSIC JLWT SR EEE. 2. Bt B S E ST - OFREETVER L. FTOMES
(CEEELTHESAST IR SR EUCAES, SRl ESZ0ONRICERT 2AES LU —NORIEIC
LT EsOREEaLFER A

44/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

3.30 3.00
1.825
0.975
1 US
0.85
5,000
10,000
0.07 10 0.06 10
0.05

45,000

45/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0.025

0.70

0.01

0.12

2021 28

46/221



0.05

2025 31

I US$

I US$
Us$

0.0125
0.01

0.85
1.1675

47/221

I US$

EDINETOOOO

o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

40

71,625
25,851
716,177
13,489
186,775
51,162

0.045

0.400

0.700

I US$

15,000



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(a
(b

A A A A A A

A A A

x

(

(x

(x

(x

(x

(i

(i

2025 31 26,668

48/221



2025
15.315
20 15
20.315
20
2038
20.315 15.315

15.315

15.315
15

2038

49/221

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

20.315
2038

2038

15.315
15

2038 20 15

20.315
20 15



81

50

50/221

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2025
109,099, 889 98.7
1,393,281 1.3
110,493,170
100.0
( 16,507 )
2025
us
859,972 | 98.94 85,087,935| 126.86 109,099,889 98.7
1 US$

51/221



2025

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10

10

2025

2025

52/221



EDINETOOOO

o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 2025
2022 113,047,138.18 16,888,112 88.12 13,164
2023 88,484,944 .76 13,218,766 69.61 10,399
2024 102,996,337.36 15,386,623 94.40 14,102
2025 88,431,634.50 13,210,802 94.58 14,129
2024 99,697,679.42 14,893,836 98.82 14,763
103,048,742.90 15,394,452 102.36 15,292
10 101,270,852.78 15,128,853 102.31 15,284
11 105,691,377.85 15,789,235 111.03 16,587
12 106,587,682.88 15,923,134 111.88 16,714
2025 110,990,033.60 16,580,801 116.91 17,465
96,837,787.84 14,466,597 103.00 15,387
88,431,634.50 13,210,802 94.58 14,129
90,957,882.60 13,588,198 97.32 14,539
100,706,026.01 15,044,473 108.07 16,145
106,546,309.44 15,916,953 115.71 17,286
110,493,169.78 16,506,575 120.71 18,033
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1,302,469 19,641 1,282,828
2021 28 1,288,969 19,641 1,269,328
2022
2002 128,904 141,418 1,270,314
128,904 141,418 1,256,814
2023
2003 58,604 238,331 1,090,587
58,604 238,331 1,077,087
2024
50,537 206,686 934,438
2024
2025 (50,537) (206,686) (920,938)
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2025 31
us
2025 31

8,737 2,411 2 87,250,631 13,034,372
1,382,759 206,570
412 62
88,633,802 13,241,004
51,249 7,656
11 150,918 22,546
202,167 30,202
88,431,635 13,210,802
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Us
2025 31

47,707 7.127
47,707 7,127
6 51,162 7,643
7 716,177 106,990
4 71,625 10,700
5 25,851 3,862
3,778 564
3 186,775 27,902
22,890 3,420
8 13,489 2,015
1,091,747 163,096
(1,044,040) (155,969)
1,226,389 183,210
38 6
1,226,427 183,216
1,048,167 156,586
1,048,167 156,586
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88,431,635 13,210,801,953 102,996,337 15,386,622,784 88,484,945 13,218,765,934
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U8 Dynamic Growil
Statement of Net Assets
as al March 31, 2025
fexpressid in UF Dollars)
Notes
ABSETS
Investment ot market value k) 87250631
faf costy LIED EF T4

Cnzsh m bank 1382759
Interest recenvalle 412
Total Assets BE,633,B02
LIABILITIES
Pavable for repurchases 51,249
Accrued expenses 11 150,918
Total Linhililies 0L16T
MNET ASSETS B5.431,635
HNumbser of Unile Outstmnding 934967
et Asset Value per Ung 9458

The acoompanying roles jorm an infegral part of these financial saterments

T
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U8 Dynamic Growil
Statement of Operations
for the vear ended March 31, 2025
fexprezmed in U5 Dollars)
Motes

INCOME

Interest on bk sccounts 47,707
Total Income 47,707
EXPENSES

Investment Mmnmger fees & FL162
Distribution fees 7 TI61TT
Adm i istrator fees 4 TLE2S
Cieetodian fees 3 15881
Legal fees 3,778
Fee Agent fees 3 186,775
Profesional fees I2EH
Agent Member Company fees 8 13450
Total Expenees 1,091,747
NET INVESTMENT LOSS (1,044,040
Net realized gain on investnients 1,226.389
Met realised gnan on foreign currencies 18
NET REALISED PROFTT FOR THE YEAR 1,226427
Change m net unrealised resull on investments LMELET
NET UNREALISED PROFIT FOR THE YEAR LB T6T
NET INCREASE IN NET ASSETS AS A RESULT OF OPERATIONS 1,230,534

The acoompanying roles jorm an infegral part of these financial saterments

&
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U8 Dynamic Growil

Statement of Changes in Net Assels

for the vear ended March 31, 2025

fesprezsad in LS Dollars)
Motes

Net smsets at the beginning of the year 102,996,337
NET [INVESTMENT LOSS [ARIEERIE ]
NET REALISED PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1226427
NET UNREALISED PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 145167
NET [INCREASE IN WET ASSETS AS A RESULT OF OPERATIONS 1,230,354
Proceeds from subscniptions of Unigs 14 5,290 568
Payments for repunch ase of Units 14 (21.085.524)
(15,795.256)
NET ASSETS AT THE END OF THE YEAR BEA3LE3S

The acoompanying roles jorm an infegral part of these financial saterments

9
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Statement of Changes in Units Cutstanding

for the vear ended March 31, 2025

Number of Units outstanding at the begmning of the year

Number of Unils isued
Number of Units repurchased

Number of Unite sutetanding at the end of the vear

Statistical Information

as al March 31, 2015
fexprazaed i U5 Dollars)

023
Mot Assets ol the end of the year 28431638
Mot Asset Value per Unit al the end af the year 9458
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U8 Dynamic Growil

Statement of [nvestmenis
as al March 31, 2025
fesprezsad in LS Dollars)

Mlarket In %o of

. -
Crantity "' Description Cost Value Mot Astels

IRELAND

INVESTMENT FUND
B53.06] Americon Centary US Focused Innovation Equity

Fund - I 175% Shares &T.372411 7,250,631 GE 66

87372411 7,250,631 D566

Total IRELAND AT.372411 87,230,631 FRE6

Total Investments 87,372,411 87,250,631 9566

= Crganbily represents @ nanber of wnits'shares,
The acoompanying noles jorman integral part of these finarncal stafermends

11
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LS Dynamic Growih

Notes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025

Mate 1 - Organlsaton

The Trust

URS Unnversal Trust {Caymem]) 11 (the “Trost™}, oo open-ended umbrelln unit trug wes crented mnd established by o Muster
Trust Deed dated December 2, 2003 under Ciymimn Dslimds lny, made between Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited {ihe “Trusee™)
and UBS Mmagement (Cayman) Limited (the “Manager™).

The Trus is mn exempted unit trust under the Trusts A (as revised) and registered mder the Mutund Funds A (ms revieed) of
the Covean Islands md, accordingly, cerain filmgs have been made m relation to the Trest with the Covmom Islands Monetary
.Anﬁor';::.-_

The Series Trust
US Dhymmmic Growth (the “Series Trust™) was estubbished by o Supplemental Trus Deed dated August 26, 2021,

The investment chjective of the Series Trat is to mvest mdirectly mamly m equities and squity relsed secunities of US
compmies tha are listed or tmaded on exchmges through imvestment in o concentrated, actively managed portfolio of
companies with significant long-tenm growth podential.

Such U5 companics may be selected from the MSCT USA Growth Index (the “Index”) or from outside the Index. In addition,
investment miy be made m pon-US companies, which will be selected from oatside the Index, up to 2 maxmmum of 1% of net
asseds,

It iz excpected that the Series Trust will seek to achieve its mvestment ohjective by mvesting substantially sl of the assets of the
Series Trust mio the I USS Shares, which is ane of the share cluses belongmg 1o Class 1 Shares, of Amencon Century US
Fomsed Inmovadion Equity Fund (the “Selected Fand”) The Selected Fund i= a sub-fund of Momuors Funds Ireland ple (the
“Umbrelln Fund}).

The Umbrella Fund is an open-ended mmbrella investment company with varisble copital imcorporated with limited liability in
Ireland under ihe Ircland Companies Acis, 2014 and esinblishied ws an Undertnkmg for Collective Investment in Tramsferable
Securities (“UCITS™) pursuant to the Foropean Communities (Undertakings for Collective Imvestment im Transferable
Securitics) Regulations, 2011,

Unless previously terminated i accordmes with the circamstances set forih in the Master Trost Dreed headed the Series Trus
will continue until the Final Repurchase Day. The Final Repurchase Day will be the earlier of 1 December 2163 (130 years
after the date of the Master Trust Deed} and the earlicst pructicable Bepurchase Dy following the occurrence of a Compulsory
Repurchase Event.

A Compulsory Repurchase Event will occur if:

{i) the Met Aswaet Vakie on my Valuaiion Day iz USD 3,000,000 or bess and, on that Valuation Dy or thereafler the
Mannger determmes all of the Units shall be compulsonly repurchised by giving notice 1o all Unitholders; or
(up the Trustee md the Mansger agree that sl of the Units should be compalsorily repurchased,

Mote 2 - Significant Accounting Policies

The fmancml sttements hove been prepeed on o gome concern basis m accondsmce with generally accepted accountmg
principles in Luxembourg spplicable to mvestment funds and include the following sign ificant accounting policies:

INVESTMENTS

The Administrator will calculate the Wet Asset Valwe as af the Valuation Point on each Valhaation Day i accordance with the
Administruiive Agency Agreement pursumt to mstructions from the Trustee or the Manager based on the principles set out in
the Trust Deed.

The Infest svailable valation of the Selected Fuand that sre made available to the Administrator, as af the Valiation Point on a

Valuation Dway, will be used for the purposes of valumg the Selected Fund. WA Rates as o 4,00 pm. {London time) will be
wsed for the purposes of valing sssets denominated in non-USD cemecies.
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U8 Dynamic Growil

Notes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025 {continued)

Maote I - Significant Accounting Polickes (comtinued)
INVESTMENTS [OONTINUED)
Met Arset Valies so caboulnded by the Adminisirator is:

{a} based wpon or by reference to sources, materiale and sysems on the mark-to-market valoe of the Selected Fund that the
Al mistrator believes to be complete, reliable and accurme; and

{b) prepared as of aparticular Valuation Day and will not therefore reflect subsequent chmges in market values or prices or any
other factors relevant to thewr determination, unless determmed otherwise by the Manager.

INVEETMENT TRANSACTIONE AND INVESTMENT INCOME

Investment trnsnchions are accounted for on the rade date. Intered meome 15 recognized on mn acorual bises. Dividends are
recorded on the ex-dividend date. Realized gains or losses on secirity transactions are determined on the basis of the average
cost of securilies sald

CONVERSION OF FORERIN CURRENCIES

The Series Trast mamiains #s sccounting records in US Dollws (*USDY) and #s fmancial statements are expressed o this
currency. Assets and liabilities expreszed in cumencies olher than USD are translated into USD o applicable exchange rates o
the year-enil Income and expenses m curencies ofher than USD are translated mio 175D at appropriate exchange rabes raling
the date of transaddion.

Inwestment trmsactions in currencies other than USD are translated into USD at the exchange rate applicable af the transaction
dhate.

The Series Trust does pat ssolnte the portion of the resuls of operations resulting from changes n foreign exchange rofes on
investments from the flictations ansang from changes in marked prices of securties hebd Suech fluduaions are mebded with
the net realised gain or loss and chimge i unrealised gam or loss from investments

Currency rte as ol March 31, 2025

LUsSD = 092575 EUR

Maote } - Fee Aget Fees

The Fee Ageni is entitbed io receive = fee of 0.12% per npnum of the Wet Asset Value (the “Operstional Costs Fees”) necmed
on and calculated a8 af each Valuation Day. The Operational Costs Fees will be payable by the Administrator, on behalf of the
Trustee, out of the sssets of the Series Troa.

Note 4 - Adminksteation Fes

The Administrador i= entithed 1o receive a fee (the “Administrabor Fee™) caleulated on a tiered asset basis, according to the size
of the Net Asset Vahae, as follows, fird USD 500 mallion st 0,07 per mmum of the Wet Assct Value, next USD 500 million =
006" per annum of the Net Asset Valoe, balance in excess of USD 1 billion @ 0.05% per snnum of the Nel Azeet Value,
which ore scomued on and caloulated as of ench Valuation Day (subject to n minimum ammual fee of USD 45.000), pavable
quarterly in amears, paid by the Trustee out of the assets of the Series Trost,

The mitial Admmizrator Fee tha acorees for the period from {md mehading) the Indial Closing Day 1o the lag Businezs Day of
September 2021 was paid to the Adminigmior on a prorated daily basis based on the Net Asset Vahees as sl the close of
buaginess in Lixembourg on each Valuation Day during such period.

13
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LS Dynamic Growih

Notes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025 {continued)

Nuote 4 - Adminkviration Fees (continued)

For the performance of ceriain specific adm nistraiive tosks, such as the issuance of m sudit confimmestion betier, the prepamtion
of semi-mnoal fimancial faiements or the use of sccomting principles other than Luxembourg Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles, the Administrator shall nlse be entitled lo receive out of the assets of the Series Trest remuneration for such services
in ssch amount as may be agreed between the Administrator and the Trusee. The Administrator will aleo be entitled to be
reimbursed by the Trostee oot of the sssts of the Series Trua for all out-of-pocket expenses and dishursem ents ressonably
incurred by it in the perfomianece of its dufies.

Maote 5 - Castody Fees

The Custodian is entitled to receive a fee {the “Custodian Fee™) of 00025% per mmnmn of the MNet Aset Value acorued on and
caleulated 5e af each Valuation Day, payable quarterly in amrears by the A dministrator, on behalf of the Trustee, out of the assets
of the Series Trust, for providing custody services,

The miial Custodinn Fee thal acenaes for the period from (mnd mchadmg) the Intial Closing Dy to the last Bosmess Day of
September 2021 was paid to the Custodian on a prorated dadly basis based on the MNet Asszel Vahies as af the cloge of business in
I.uxmbourg om each Valustion Dy vliln'ng aich p-ennd. The Custodian shall also be remnbursed ot of the assets of the Series
Trust for all ancillary fees for all meillary services (inchodmg without limasion the processing of external currency
trmnsEclions & notified to the Cusdodim by the Manager (or 25 delegie) B accordimee with the Serses Trud's mvestment
objective, policies and restrictions) that may be performed by the Custodian for the account of the Series Trust o aech amount
as may be agreed between the Trustee mnd the Custodian from tme to lzne.

The Cuostodiun is also entithed to recenve any other fees agreed between the relevant paties md to be reimbursed ont of the

aseels of the Series Trusl for all out-af-pocket expenses and dishursements progerly incurred by i, including the fees and
expmses of all sub-cusgtodins, n the performance of its duiies,

Maote é - Investment Manager Fees

The Invedment Mmager is entitled fo receive n fee of 0.05% per snoum of ihe Net Asset Vahse ncomed on and caleulsbed s o
ench Vahition Derye mnd payable querterly i srrenss. The lnvestment Masnger Fees will be pud by the Admimistritor, on behalf
of the Trustee, out of the assets of the Series Trus,

MNaote T - Distribution Fees

Each of the Distributors i entitled to receive a fee of 0,70% per mnum of the Net Asset Vidue attributable to the U3 Dollar
Class Units acomwed on wnd ealoulated as at ench Vakiaion Day muliiplied by the fmction of Unils in izwe for which the
Dristribator ie Unithelder divided by the total nomber of US Dollar Class Units in issue, and paysble monthly in smrears
("Distribution Fees"). The Distribotion Fees will be payable by the Admmistmtor, on behalf of the Mmager, out of the assets of
the Series Trast

Maote § - Agent Member Company Fees

The Agent Member Company i= entifled io receive o fee of 0.01% per sonum of the Net Asset Value atinbuteble to the US
Dollar Class Units, sccnaed on and caleulated as at each Valsation Day and payveble quarterly in amears. The Agent Member
Company Fees will be poid by the Adminigmtor, on behalf of the Monnger, oot of the sssets of the Series Trust,

Note? - Trustee Fees

The Truster iz entitled to receive a fixed annual fee of USD 100000 per annum pavable snually = advance oot of the
Operuonad Costs Fees.

The Trustes iz also enfitled to be reimbursed out af the Operational Cosds Fees for all out-of-podket expenzes mnd didhursements
properly incurred by it in the performance of its duties
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LS Dynamic Growih

Notes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025 {continued)

MNaote 10 - Manager Fees
The Manager &= entitled io receive out of the Operational Costs Fees a management fee of USD 5,000 per muum payable

monthly m arears. For the svoidance of doubi, the Manager may decide in its sole discretion to reduce or waive the payment of
the Manager Fees

MNote 11 - Acerued exp enses

usD
Investment Manager fees 12,819
Drizdribt ion Tees 55 849
Adlministrator fees 17947
Cudodam fees 6410
Prafessional fees 24,900
Agent Member Company fees 2,560
Fee Agent fees 30,733
Acerued expenses 150,918

Maote 11 - Distributons

The policy m relation 1o the Series Trud, in respect of the US Dollr Class Units, = not to make dignbutions m respect of such
clags af Units to Unithalders but matead to reinvest all the Series Trust’s net mcome and realised capital gaine. Accordingly, an
investment i the Series Trust may ool be susnble for mvestors seeking curment returms,

For the year ended March 31, 2025, the Series Trust did nod distribute my dividend to Unithalders.

Mote 13 - Toaoowtion

Under the curment lows of the Caymm Idlands, there are no mcome, estale, transfer, sules or other twces puyabbe by the Seres
Trust or withholding taxes applicable to the payment by the Senes Trust to the Unitholders or to the povment of net asset value
opan repurchase of Units.

The Trust hos eeerved m wndertaking from the Caymmn Islands Goverment exemping it from ol logal income, profits and
cupitnl gams taxes untl December 2, 2063, Mo ach ticces are levied m the Ciyman Islnds at the present time. The Series Trus
could incur withholding tnxes mposed by certain countries on investment meome md capital gans, Soch income or gam would
be recorded gross of withholding taxes in the Statement of Operations. Withholding tioes would be shown a5 2 separate item in
the Stlement of Cpanfions, No withhelding tnx expense was paid o pavable durng the venr ended March 31, 2025,

The Selected Fund may choose o mvest m entities domiciled in countries sdher than Cayman Ismds, Mmy of these foreign
countries have tiee laws which mdicate thid capital gans taxes miy be applicable to non-residents inchiding the Selecied Fund.
These copital gaing fimes are required 1o be determmed on 8 self-nsscesm et basis md, therefore, such taxes may not be
deducted by the Selected Fund's broker on a ‘withholding” basiz.

The Series Trust is required to recognize a tax liakility when it i probable that the tax laws of foreign couniries require a (ax
libilsty te be mssezsed on the Senes Trast’s copitnl gains sourced from such foreign comry, mssumng the relevant g
authorities have full knowledge of all the facts and circum fances. The tax lishility is them measored af the amount expected 1o
be paid to the relevant tsocontion authortties wsing the tmc laws and rates that heve been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. There is somelimes uncertainty about the wiy enacted tax law s applied to offshore investment
Senies Trusts, This ereates mneertainty about whether ornet & fsoc liability will ultimately be paid by the Series Trust, Therefore,
when measuring any uncertain tax lisbilities managem ent considers all of the relevant facte and circamstances svailable o the
time which could influence the likelihood of payment, mehudmg my formal or informal practices of the rebevani tax muthorities.
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LS Dynamic Growih

Notes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025 {continued)

Maote 13 - Taxathon (continued)

Az at Meareh 31, 2025, the Monsger hos determmed that the Series Trust did not have a labildy fo record for any unrecognized
1o benefil i the financial statements. While this represents the Managers best estimate there remaing arsk that the foreign tax
authorities will aftempt to collect taxes on capital gaing emmed by the Series Tmst. This conld happen without giving prior
waming, possibly on a retrogpective basis, md could resolt mow loss to the Series Truse

MNaote 14 - Terms of subscriptlons mnd repurchases

Tnitial Officiag Pegiad

Investors migy subscribe for US Dollar Class Units during dhe Initial Offerme Period by sending a completed Application Fom
{together with mpporting documentation to verify sech investor's identity, & 2o out in the Application Form and source of
subscriplion monies) (o the Adminigrator so a5 1o be recemved by the Admmigmtor by no lder thm 11,00 am, (Luxembouarg
time] on the last day of the Lritial Offering Period or by sudch olher times andlor diays a the Manager may in its sole discretion

determine,

The subscription monies must be remiited in full by telegmphic irnsfer from an wecount in the name af the applicant for the
account of the Series Trast for a cash seitlement date on the Initial Clesing Day. Payment mus be made in US Dollars. Mo third
party pavments will be accepled. An meomplete Applicalion Farm may, m the discretion of the Mmager, be held over ta the
first Dwaling Day following receipt of 4 completed Application Form and US Dallar Class Units will then be isaed o the
relevant Wel Asset Vabue per Unit on such Dealing Day.

enl Subsora ions

Investons m:hmg o subszcnbe for US Dollar Clises Unils on o BEHEIIB Dy an ar after the Initaal lf:':lnsu'ng Dy, miust send @
completed Application Form or a simplificd subsenption form (a= the cose may bel, for the purchisse of US Dollar Class Units
(together with, f not previously provided, supporting documentation to verify the sdentity of the applicant and scarce of
subscription monies) to the Adminisirator so s to be received by the Admmnisirtor by no leer than 11,00 am. {Loxemboarg
tume) on the relevant Dealing Day or by such other times mdfor days as the Manager may i il5 sole discretion determme. An
incomplete Applicuion Form may, m the disaretion of the MMansger, be held over te the first Dealmg Day following receqd of a
completed Application Form and Unats will then be msued @ the relevant Net Asset Vabue per Unit spplicable to such Dealing
Day.

The subscription monies must be remitted in full by tebegraphic transfer from an sccount i the neme of the applicant for the
account of the Series Trust for mcash settlement date on or before the date three Business Days from md exclisding the relevint
Diealing Day. Payment must be made in US Dollars. Mo third paty payments will be accepeed.

Bepurchases

A Unitholder may make a repurchase request to the Administrafor on ench Repurchase Dy m respect of Units of s class of
Unitz for which subscription procecds have been received by the Administrator. In order 1o make a repurchase request, a
Unitholder, mugt mabmit 1 complted repurchase notice {the “Repurchise Notice™) to the Adminigmior by facsimile to the
facammile number specified in the Repurchase Notice (notwithstanding, the Administralor may provide altemative methodis) to
such submission. ) specifving the number of Units and the rebevant elass of Units to be repurchased so as 1o be received by the
Adminisirator by no lafer than 11.00 am. (Luxembourg time) on the relevant Repurchase Day, or by such other fime andior
days as the Mmager may, in its sole discrefion, defermme (the *“Regurchase Wotice Deadlne'™).

The repurchase price per Unit will be calculabed as the Met Asset Value per Unit as o the relevant Repurchase Day (or if that
Repurchase Dipy i not also a Valiation Day then on the imm edintely preceding Valoation Day ) {the “Repurchase Price™).

The Bepurchose Motice once served i8 imevocable, wmless the Mansger, after consultaion with the Trastee, determimes
otherwise. The Mansger may, in is sole discretion, hold over any Repurchase Notice received after the Repurchage Notice
Dreadline until the next following Bepurchase Diay and repurchase the relevimt Units af the rebevant Bepurchase Price on tha
Repurchase Dy,

Upon receipl of 8 Repurchase Motice by the Eepurchase Motice Deadline, and save as deseribed below, the relevant Units will
be repurchosed o the Repurchase Price. The mmimum number of Units that migy be the subject of a repurchice request by a
Unitholder on any Bepurchase Day iz 1 Unit and thereafier in 1 Unit increments, unless the Manager determines otherwise.
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LS Dynamic Growih

Notes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025 {continued)

MNaote 14 - Terms of subscriptions s repurchases (continued)

Bepurchases {coniinued)

In order to comply with regulafions aimed al the prevention of money laupdering in sy applicable jurisdiction, the
Addministrator regerves the right 1o request such information &z it considers necessary in order to process any Repurchase
Notiee. The Administrabor may refiuse (o progess any Repurchase Notice or delay pavment of repurchase proceeds if a
Unitholder mbmiting Units for repurchase delavs in producing or fals to produce sy mformation required by the
Administrator or it such refusal = necessary to ensure the compliance by the Trustee or the Admmistrator with any snti-money
lmandering or law in any juriediction.

Where a Repurchase MNotice iz sccepted the Units will be treated as having been repurchased with effect from the pelevant
Repurchase Day imespective of whether or not such Unithelder has boen removed from the Register or the Repuarchase Price
has been determined or remined. Accordimgly, from the relevant Repurchase Day, Unitholders in their capacity ae such will not
be entitled 1o or be capable of exercising my nghts misng under the Trust Deed with respect to Units being repurchased
{meluding any right 1o receive notice of, attend or vole of any meeting of the Series Trua) smve the right 1o receive the
Repurchase Price and any dignbution which has been declimed proor 1o the rebevant Reporchase Dy but not vet paxd (in each
case with respect to the Unite being reparchased). Such repurchasing Unitholders will be creditors of the Seres Trast with
respect to the Repurchase Price. In an msolvent Liquidation, repurchasing Unithalders wall rmk bebmd ordinmy arediors bug
ahead of Unitholders,

MNote 15 - Subsequent evimils

The Trustee his evabuated all subsequent tmmenctions and events through July 31, 2025, the dae on which these finmcial
statements were made available 1o be meed

From April 1, 2025 to July 31, 2025, there were smbscriptions of unils of USD 910,734 and repurchases of ons of
USIN33TEETI

There are no other subsequent events to report as relutes to the Series Tnest.
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us

us

I US$



I US$

us

2024 12 31

2,440,122

4,454
104,173,682

106,618,258

(224,975)

(224,975)

106,393,283

106,381,465
902,917
117.8198
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364,530

665
15,562,506
15,927,702

(33,609)
(33,609)

15,894,093

15,892,327

17,601
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2024 12 31

228,485 34,133
(354) (53)
31,897,622 4,765,186
32,125,753 4,799,266
(856,427) (127,942)
31,269,326 4,671,325
31,269,326 4,671,325
(65,895) (9,844)

31,203,431 4,661,481
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us

2024 12 31

100,003,928 14,939,587
31,203,431 4,661,481

2,768,900 413,646
(27,582,976) (4,120,621)
(24,814,076) (3.,706,975)

106,393,283 15,894,093
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161,825 24,175
3,012 450

123 18
(835,891) (124,874)
(670,931) (100,230)
(20,851,505) (3,115,006)
48,074,956 7,181,918
27,223,451 4,066,911
2,768,900 413,646
(27,582,976) (4,120,621)
(24,814,076) (3,706,975)
1,738,444 259,706
701,678 104,824
2,440,122 364,530
161,825 24,175
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- 97.91 2023 12 31 99.50

- 1.61 2023 12 31 0.21
- 1.61 2023 12 31 0.21

Shopify Inc Class A 16,097 1,709,018 1.61
1,709,018 1.61
1,709,018 1.61
- 1.37 2023 12 31 0.98
- 1.37 2023 12 31 0.98
Ascendis Pharma A/S - Sponsored ADR 10,633 1,456,934 1.37
1,456,934 1.37
1,456,934 1.37
- 2.75 2023 12 31 1.54
- 2.75 2023 12 31 1.54
Adyen NV 144A 749 1,116,728 1.05
Argenx SE - Sponsored ADR 2,928 1,814,116 1.70
2,930,844 2.75
2,930,844 2.75
- 0.33 2023 12 31 -
- 0.33 2023 12 31 -
Spotify Technology SA 788 355,380 0.33
355,380 0.33
355,380 0.33
- 0.74 2023 12 31 -
- 0.74 2023 12 31 -
ARM Holdings Plc - Sponsored ADR 6,231 782,177 0.74
782,177 0.74
782,177 0.74
- 91.11 2023 12 31 95.92
- 29.19 2023 12 31 25.28
Alphabet Inc Class C 54,906 10,582,033 9.95
Amazon.com Inc 47,169 10,476,943 9.85
DoorDash Inc Class A 5,765 971,633 0.91
Meta Platforms Inc Class A 6,304 3,736,255 3.51
Netflix Inc 4,564 4,102,169 3.86
Okta Inc Class A 14,844 1,184,551 1.11
31,053,584 29.19
- 11.65 2023 12 31 12.34
Cava Group Inc 2,695 304,481 0.29
Chipotle Mexican Grill Inc Class A 51,770 3,128,461 2.94
Tesla Inc 21,255 8,962,171 8.42
12,395,113 11.65
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- 91.11 (2023 12 31 95.92 )( )

- 14.74 (2023 12 31 19.61 )
Alnylam Pharmaceuticals Inc 11,143 2,634,094 2.47
Block Inc Class A 28,140 2,453,808 2.31
Blueprint Medicines Corp 12,457 1,082,140 1.02
Boston Beer Co Inc/The Class A 913 272,074 0.25
Constellation Brands Inc Class A 9,327 2,064,252 1.94
Intuitive Surgical Inc 4,781 2,518,105 2.37
Paylocity Holding Corp 5,680 1,134,069 1.07
Regeneron Pharmaceuticals Inc 2,822 2,004,523 1.88
S&P Global Inc 668 333,759 0.31
Structure Therapeutics Inc - Sponsored ADR 19,086 506,542 0.48
Verisk Analytics Inc Class A 2,465 681,498 0.64
15,684,864 14.74

- 3.11 2023 12 31 5.65
Kinsale Capital Group Inc 1,060 493,430 0.46
Mastercard Inc Class A 5,336 2,819,383 2.65
3,312,813 3.11
- 4.45 2023 12 31 6.53

Cactus Inc Class A 21,790 1,268,178 1.19
Rocket Lab USA Inc 95,013 2,498,842 2.35
Westinghouse Air Brake Technologies Corp 5,051 968,630 0.91
4,735,650 4.45

- 27.97 2023 12 31 26.51
Advanced Micro Devices Inc 31,953 3,917,118 3.68
Cadence Design Systems Inc 7,499 2,264,623 2.13
DocuSign Inc Class A 16,447 1,500,789 1.41
HubSpot Inc 3,002 2,112,297 1.99
Microsoft Corp 11,968 5,093,581 4.79
Monolithic Power Systems Inc 1,274 766,566 0.72
NVIDIA Corp 69,996 9,568,453 8.99
ON Semiconductor Corp 8,279 524,889 0.49
Salesforce Inc 11,923 4,008,989 3.77
29,757,305 27.97
96,939,329 91.11
104,173,682 97.91
104,173,682 97.91
2,219,601 2.09
106,393,283 100.00

2024 12 31
97.71
97.71
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Advanced Micro Devices Inc 37,213 7,019,414
Alphabet Inc Class C 14,142 1,993,597
Meta Platforms Inc Class A 3,299 1,544,028
ARM Holdings Plc - Sponsored ADR 8,401 1,445,036
Adyen NV144A 749 1,140,889
Shopify Inc Class A 13,463 991,868
DoorDash Inc Class A 5,765 741,474
Structure Therapeutics Inc - Sponsored ADR 19,086 715,609
ON Semiconductor Corp 8,279 572,561
Block Inc Class A 6,249 523,132
Kinsale Capital Group Inc 1,060 477,911
Ascendis Pharma AS - Sponsored ADR 2,907 409,162
Microsoft Corp 865 349,856
Cava Group Inc 2,695 343,496
Constellation Brands Inc Class A 1,295 315,995
HubSpot Inc 505 302,429
Salesforce Inc 1,010 300,561
Astera Labs Inc 5,929 287,624
Spotify Technology SA 788 280,955
Paylocity Holding Corp 1,151 233,632
DocuSign Inc Class A 2,099 211,350

Okta Inc Class A 2,459 207,625
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NVIDIA Corp 20,731 8,945,377
Amazon.com Inc 16,436 3,110,682
Alphabet Inc Class C 18,494 2,955,550
Intuitive Surgical Inc 5,435 2,544,343
Visa Inc Class A 8,195 2,316,788
Regeneron Pharmaceuticals Inc 2,163 2,063,281
Westinghouse Air Brake Technologies Corp 13,299 1,954,701
Keysight Technologies Inc 10,957 1,675,879
NIKE Inc Class B 15,927 1,664,440
Chipotle Mexican Grill Inc Class A 14,712 1,615,228
Monolithic Power Systems Inc 2,404 1,549,350
Okta Inc Class A 20,435 1,504,709
Tesla Inc 6,268 1,471,322
Netflix Inc 1,765 1,269,138
Salesforce Inc 4,442 1,188,555
HubSpot Inc 1,564 997,550
S&P Global Inc 1,976 924,330
Advanced Micro Devices Inc 5,260 919,775
BILL Holdings Inc 14,256 881,583
Rocket Lab USA Inc 70,886 805,732
FANUC Corp 29,100 799,202
Constellation Brands Inc Class A 3,132 783,631
Cactus Inc Class A 12,101 709,784
Cadence Design Systems Inc 2,274 684,597
Microsoft Corp 1,617 675,405
Intercontinental Exchange Inc 5,151 658,208
Mastercard Inc Class A 1,329 627,925
Argenx SE - Sponsored ADR 1,113 598,224

Boston Beer Co Inc/The Class A 1,656 503,110
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2024 31
us
2024 31

312 3,822 2 101,953,875 15,230,889
1,693,279 252,959
121,668 18,176
139 21
103,768,961 15,502,045
622,088 92,934
11 150,536 22,489
772,624 115,422
102,996,337 15,386,623

1,091,116

94.40 14,102
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Us
2024 31

48,087 7,184

48,087 7,184

6 47,823 7,144

7 669,426 100,006

4 66,950 10,002

5 24,184 3,613

750 112

3 124,840 18,650

29,428 4,396

12,766 1,907

52,628 7,862

1,028,795 153,692

(980, 708) (146,508)

(2,679,710) (400, 322)

(154) (23)

(2,679,864) (400, 345)

33,219,142 4,962,608

33,219,142 4,962,608

29,558,570 4,415,755
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2024 31
88,484,945 13,218,766
(980,708) (146,508)
(2,679,864) (400,345)
33,219,142 4,962,608
29,558,570 4,415,755
14 4,700,568 702,218
14 (19,747,746) (2,950,116)
(15,047,178) (2,247,898)
102,996, 337 15,386,623
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Us
2024 31
1,271,063
58,343
(238,290)
1,091,116
2024 31
2024 2023 2022

102,996,337 15,386,622,784 88,484,945 13,218,765,934 113,047,138 16,888,111,946

94.40 14,102 69.61 10,399 88.12 13,164
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us
2024 31
(€))
1,044,726 usS
-1 103,123,822 101,953,875 98.99
US$
103,123,822 101,953,875 98.99
103,123,822 101,953,875 98.99
103,123,822 101,953,875 98.99

@
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2024 31

UBS 11
11
UBS
2013 12

UsS 2021
26

MSCI

10
UsS
1
I US
2014
2011 EC

UCITS

2163 12 150
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2023 19 UBS AG
FINMA
2023 12 UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
AG
UBS AG
AG
GAAP
@

(b)

AG

AG

115/221

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AG
AG AG
UBS AG AG

UBS AG
UBS AG AG
2024 31

WM



USD
usD

USD

2024 31

1USD 0.92593 EUR

0.05
5,000

0.07

2021

10

USsD
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USD
usb

USD

0.12

0.06 10
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0.025

2021

0.05
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10,000

5,000

usb

12,641
56,144
17,697

6,321
24,900

2,525
30,308

150,536
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2024 31

13

2063 12

2024 31
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2024 31

14

11

11

11
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15

2024

2024 2024 23 136 9,408 887 9,944
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U8 Dynamic Growil
Statement of Net Assets
as al March 31, 2024
fexpressid in UF Dollars)
Notes
ABSETS
Investment ot mirket value k) 101,953,875
et costy LED J03. 1238280
Crsh a bank 1,693,279
Recenvable for subscrptions 121,668
Interest receivable 13%
Total Assets 103, 76859461
LIABILITIES
Payable for repurchases GILOEE
Accrued expenses i1 150334
Total Linhilitics TTLGM
NET ASBETS 102,996,337
Number of Units Catstmding 1091116
et Azset Value per Ungt 54,40

The acoompanying roles jorm an infegral part of these financial saterments

&
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Statement of Operations
for the vear ended March 31, 2024

fexprezmed in U5 Dollars)

INCOME
Interest on bsmk aceounts

Total Income

EXPENSES

Investment Mmnmger fees
Dnistribation fees

Adm mistrator fees

Custodian fees

Legal fees

Fee Agent fees

Profesional fees

Agent Member Company fees
Amortisstion of formation expnss

Total Expenses

NET INVESTMENT LOSS

Met realised loss on investments
Net realised loss on foreizn currencies

NET REALISED LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Chiange in net unrealised resull on mvestments

NET UNREALISED GAIN FOR. THE YEAR

NET INCREASE IN NET ASSETS AS A RESULT OF OPERATIONS

Motes

[N ]

L

The acoompanying roles jorm an infegral part of these financial saterments

T
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48,087

48,087

47,823
669426
GESED
4,154
750
124,540
29428
11766
FLG2E

10257235

(980, 708}

{2,679,710)
{154}

(2670804 )

33,219,042

33,219,042

9,355,370
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LS Dynamic Growih

Statement of Changes in Net Assels
for the vear ended March 31, 2024
fesprezsad in LS Dollars)

MNet mmsets at the begmning of the year

NET [INVESTMENT LOSS
NET REALISED LOSE FOR THE YEAR
NET UNREALISED GAIN FOR THE YEAR

NET [INCREASE IN NET ASSETS AS A RESULT OF OFERATIONS

Proceeds from subscriptions of units
Prayments for repurch ase of units

NET ASSETS AT THE END OF THE YEAR

Motes
5,454,945
{5, TR )

(2.679.564)
EE A LN )

29558570

14 4,700,568
14 (09,747,746}

(15,0471 78)

102,996,337

The acoompanying roles jorm an infegral part of these financial satermentz

&
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U8 Dynamic Girowil
Statement of Changes in Units Cutstanding
for the vear ended March 31, 2024
Number of units outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,271,063
Number of unils ssued 58,343
Number of units repurchased {238.290)
Number of units outstan ding at the end of the year LeL116
Statistical Information

as at March 31, 2024

fexprazaed i U5 Dollars)
2024 023 022
Mef Assets al the end of the year 102,996,337 BE A5 045 113,047,138
Mot Asset Value per unit al the end of the veir G440 69,61 BH.12
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U8 Dynamic Growil
Statement of Tnvestmenis
as al March 31, 2024
fesprezsad in LS Dollars)
i s Mlarket In %o of
Crantity "' Description Cost Value Mot Astels
[RELAND
INVESTMENT FUND
1044726 Americmn Centary US Focused Innevation Ecquity
Fund - I 1755 Shares 103,123 822 100,953 87F SRS
103, 123822 100,555 875 a8
Total IRELAND 103,123,822 101,953,875 P8.99
Total Investments 103,123,822 101,953,875 98,99

O Crugntity represents @ number of unite'thares,

10
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LS Dynamic Growih

Notes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024

Mate 1 - Organlsaton

The Trust

UBS Universi Trust {Coymm) [ (Formerly: Credit Sumese Universal Trsst (Covman) 0T {the “Trus") , o open-mded
umbrella umit rus was credled and esablished by a Master Trust Deed dated December 2, 2013 under Coyman Islands linw,
made between Ehan Trestee (Cayman) Lmited (the “Trustee”) and UBS Management {Cayman) Limited (formerdy: Credit
BZuisse Management (Cayman ) Lim ited) {the “Manager™ )L

The Trud 15 an exempled unil trust under the Trusts Act (as revised) and regostered under the Muotund Funde At (m revised) of
the Cavenan Islands snd, accordingly, cerfain filings have been made i relation 1o the Trest wilth the Cayman Islands Monetary
Authority.

Ihe Series Trud
US Dynmmic Growth (the “Series Trust™) was established by a Supplemental Trust Deed dabed August 26, 2021,

The investment objective of the Series Trust i= to mvest mdirectly mainly in equities and equity related securities of US
compmics that are listed or tmaded on exchmges through invesment in a concentraied, actively managed porfolio of
companies with significant long-term groswth potential.

Such 178 compamies may be selected from the MSCT USA Growth Index (the “Index”) or from outside the Index. In additon,
investment may be made m non-US companics, which will be selected from outside the Index, up to s maximum of 10% of net
aEEels,

1t is expected that the Series Trust wall seck to achieve its mvestment objective by investing substantially all of the assets of the
Senies Trust into the I US55 Shares, which iz one of the share classer belonging to Class 1 Shares, of Amenican Century US
Foaised Innovadion Equty Fund {the “Selected Fund™), The Selected Fund 15 o sub-fund of Nomurn Funds Treland ple {the
“Umbrella Fund).

The Umbrella Fund 15 an open-ended umbrella investment company with viriable copital meorparded wath limited lability
Ireland under the Ircland Companics Acts, 2014 and established as an Undertnking for Collective Investment in Transferable
Seaurtties (UCITS™) pursuant fo the Furopenn Communities (Underiakmes for Collective Investment m Trnsferable
Securities) Regulahons, 2011,

Unless previously terminaed in sccordmee with the circumstonces set forth in the Master Trust Deed hended the Series Trus
will contimes unbil the Finad Reporchase Doy, The Fmal Repurchase Day will be the ewrlier of 1 December 2163 (150 vears
after the date of the Master Trust Deed) and the earliest practicable Repurchase Day following the seourrence of a Compulsory
Repurchse Event,

A Compulsory Reparchase Event wall occur if:

{i) the Met Asset Vahe on any Valuaibon Dy iz USD 3000000 or bess and, on that Valuation Day or thereafier the
Manager determmes all of the Unils shall be conipailsonly repurchased by giving iotsce to all Unithalders; o
(i} the Trustee md the Manager agree that el of the Units should be compulsorily repurchased.

Om March 19, 2023, UBS Group AG agreed to acquire Credil Suise Group AG following intervention by the Swiss Federal
Drepartmeent of Fnance, the Swizs Naticnal Bank md the Swiss Finmncial Markel Supervisory Anthority (FTNMA)

As of Jupe 12, 2023, UBS Group AG anpounced the legal closing of the acquisition of Credit Suisse Groap AG by way of a
stahitory merger. As a result of the closing, Credit Suisse Group AG ceased to exist, and Credit Suizse AG became o direct
wholly-owned subeidiary of UBS Group AG. One of the key steps of the integration ie the legal menger of UBS AG and Credin
Suisge AG (the “Parent Bank Merger” ). The Parent Bank Mernger is a stalutory merger by absorpiion under Swiss law, whereby
UBS AG will be the surviving entity and Credit Suisse AG will cense to exist upon completion of the merger. At this poit in
time, in principle, all asets, labilities md contracts of Credit Suisse AG and itz branches wall antomatically tranddier 1o URS
AG {and its branches as the case may be) by operation of law (in other words by *“universal succession™ ) A= a result, UBS AG
will sitcmatically e over all the rights and responssbilities from Credit Suisee A As a reault, UBS AG will sutomatically
take over all the rights and responzibilities from Credit Suisse AG. The Parent Bank Merger was completed with effect from
Ny 31, 2024,

The Manager and the Trustee understand that Credit Swisse Intemational a8 counterpany and will continse o conduct its
operations n the ordinary course

11
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LS Dynamic Growih

Notes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024 {continued)

Maote ? - Significant Accounting Polickes

The financial sislements have been prepared on o going concern basis m accordance with genernlly accepted accounting
principles applicable o investment funds in Luxembourg and include the followmg significant accounting policies:

INVESTMENTS

The Administrador will caleulate the Net Asset Value s af the Valuation Point on each Valuation Day @ accordance with the
Administrative Agency Agreement pursumni to insirictions from the Trustee or the Manager based on the principles set out in
the Trust Deed.

The lnfest svailable valation of the Selected Fund that are made available to the Admmisivator, as al the Valation Peint on a
Waluation Dy, will be used for the purposes of valumg the Selected Fund, WA Rates a3 of 4.00 p.m. {London time) will be
used for the purposes of valiing assets denominated in non-USD cumrencies.

Mot Ased Vahies so caboulated by the Administrator is:

{a) bazed wpon or by reference to gources, materials and systems on the mark-to-market value of the Selected Fund ihag the
Adm mistrigor believes o be mpl:be.r!]iﬂ:ﬂe and pecurme; and

{b) prepared = of aparticular Valuation Dy snd vall not therefore reflect subsequent chimges in madkcet values or prices or any
other factors relevant 1o their determination, unless detemmined stherwize by the Manager.

INVESTMENT TRANEACTIONS AND INVESTMENT INCOME
Investment transactions are accowinted for on the irade date. Interest meome is recognized on an acerual basis. Dividends are
recorded on the ex-dividend dae. Realised gains or lbsses on invedments ransactions e deermined on the basis of the
average cost of mvestm ents sold.
CONVERSION QF ROREFIN CURRENCIES
The Senies Trust momimns is sccounimg records i US Dollars (TS0} and #s fmancial statements are expressed i this
cuwrrency, Assets and linbalities expressed in comencies other than USD are translated mto USD at applicable exchange rates o
the vemr-end Income md expenses i cwmencies ofher than USD are translated into USD at appropriste exchange rabes mling
the date of tramsaction.
Investment rmsnctions m currencies ofher than USD e trmslated inte USD af the exchange rate applicable af the tranzaction
date.
The Senes Trust does not ssolate the portion of the resulis of operations resuling from changes in foreign exchage rofes on
imvestments from the fluchuations arismg from changes in market prices of investments held. Such fluctuation: are nchaded
with the net renlised nnd unrealised gan or loss from investments,
Cwrrency rabe as mt March 31, 2024;

IUsDp = 091593 EUR
FORMATION EXPENGES
Foomalion expenses are payshle by the Administraior on behalf of the Trustee out of the assetz of the Series Trug and
amortised over 3 fiscal vesrs.
MNote 1 - Fee Agmt Fees
The Fee Agent is enditbed to receive a fee of 0.12% per armum of the Met Asset Value (the “Operational Costs Fees™) acerued

on and calculated a3 af each Valuaion Day. The Operational Costs Fees will be payable by the Administrator, oo behall of the
Trustee, ol of the seets of e Series Troa.
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LS Dynamic Growih

Notes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024 {continued)

Note 4 - Adminisiration Fees

The Admnestrator is entitled fo receive a fee (the “Administrobor Fee'™) caloulated on a tiered asset basis, according to the size
of the Net Aset Value, as follows, first USD 300 million s 0.07% per annum of the Net Asset Valoe, pext USD 300 million =
0.06% per annum ol the Net Asset Valoe, balmnce i excess of USD 1 billion & 0,05% per snnum of the Net Asset Value,
which are acemued on and caleulated as & ench Valvation Dy (subject to a minEnum armual fee of USD 450000, payable
quarterly in smears, paid by the Trustes out of the mssets of the Series Trust,

The mitial Admmnistrator Fee that accnses for the period from {and inchading ) the Initinl Closing Day to the las Business Dy of
September 2021 was paid to the Adminigtrator on a prorafed daily basis baged on the Net Asset Values as al the close of
business in Lucembourg on each Vahiation Day during sich peniod

For the performance of cenain specific administratinve tasks, sech as the issusnce of mn sadit confinmation letter, the proparation
of semi-mnual fmancial safements or the use of sccoumting principles other than Luxemboung Generally Accepled Accounting
Principles, the Adminigmtor shall also be entitled 1o receive out of the aseels of the Serses Trust remumerntion for such services
in asch amount a5 may be agreed between the Administralor and the Trugtee. The Administrabor will alse be entitled to be
reimbursed by the Trustee out of the mssets of the Senes Trug for all oul-of-pocket expenses and dishursem ents reasonsbly
incurred by it in the perfomance of its duties,

Mote 5 - Costody Fees

The Custocham is entitled to receive o fee (the “Custodum Fee™) of 0U025% per mnum of the Net Asset Vidue ncerued on and
calcubated as ot ench Valuaion Day, pavable quarterly in amears by the Admmistrator, on behall of the Trustee, out of the assis
of the Series Trud, for providing custody services,

The mitiad Custodion Fee thal acenaes for the plrind fram {l:ln! Il1ll.'h:|d..l13:l the Inbial Clm'l,g nq. 1o the last Busmess Du}- afl
September 2021 was paid to the Custodion on a promied daly basis based on the Met Azset Values as of the close of busmess in
Luxembourg on each Valuation Doy during sawch period. The Custodion shall ako be remnbarsed out of the assets of the Series
Trust for all ancillary fees for all mcillay services (mchodmg without lmiation the processing of extemal cumency
transaclions as notified to the Costodm by the Munager (or its delegute) = accordmee with the Sertes Truat's mvestment
objective, palicies snd restrichons) thaet may be performed by the Costodion for the nocount of the Series Trust m sch mnouni
a5 many be agreed between the Trustee and the Custodin from time to tmne,

The Custodion 15 also entitbed to receive mny other fees agreed between the relevant pasties md fo be reimbursed ot of the
aszets of the Series Trust for all out-of-pocket expenses and disbursements propery mowmed by i, including the fecs and
expenses of nll mb-cusgodios, in the perfomeance of its duties.

Maote § - Investment Manager Fees

The Inveament Mmnager is entitled fo receive o fee of 0.05% per annum of the Net Asset Value acomoed on and caloulsted s of
each Valuation Dy and payable quarterly in arears. The Investment Manager Fees will be paid by the Administrator, on behalf
of the Trustee, out of the assets of the Serics Trust,

MNote T - Distribution Fees

Each of the Digributors is entitled to receive a fee of 0.70% por soum of the MNet Assel Value atiributable to the US Dollar
Clizs Units secmoed on and coloolated s ot ench Vablation Day multiplied by the fraction of Unite in issue for which the
Distribator i Unitholder divided by the total number of US Dollar Claes Units in issue, and payable monthly in amears
{“Distribution Fees") The Distritation Fees will be payable by the Admimisrator, on behalf of the Mmager, out of the asscts of
the Series Trast

Note § - Agent Member Company Fees

The Agent Member Company iz entitled to receive a fee of 0001% per mnum of the Net Asset Value afiributable 1o the US

Doller Class Unigs, scemed on and caleulated as af each Vahation Day snd payable quarterly in amesrs. The Agent Member
Company Fees will be paid by the Adminigrator, on behalf of the Mmager, out of the assets of the Series Trast.
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Notes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024 {continued)

Mote ¥ - Trustes Fees

The Trustee iz entitled to receive a fxed snpual fee of USD 10000 per snpum payable smually @ advance oot of the
Operational Cosis Fees.

The Trustee is also entitled to be reimbursed out of the Oporational Costs Fees for all out-of-pocket expenzes amd dishursements
properly inoemed by it in the performance of its duties

MNote 10 - Mannger Fees

The Manager is entitled 1o receive out of the Operafional Costs Fees a management fee of USD 5,000 per mnum payable

monthly m srears. For the svoidance of dowlt, the Manager may decide in its sole discretion to redice or waive the pavment of
the Manager Feea

Note 11 - Accrued expenses

LEn
Investment Mmnger fres 124641
Disribution fees 56,144
Adminisroor fees 17697
Custodian fees 6321
Prafes=ionn] fees 24,900
Agent Member Company fees 1515
Fee Agent fews 30,308
Aceried expenses 150,538

Note 12 - Disgtributdons

The policy m relabion to the Series Trust, i respect of the US Dollar Class Unils, i= nod to make distinbutions i respect of such
class of Units to Unitholders but mstend to reinvest all the Senes Trost’s net meome and realised copital gune Accordingly, m
investment i the Senes Trust may pot be suitable for mvestors seeking cument retums.

For the ver ended Muarch 31, 2024, the Series Trust did net distribute my dividend to Unithalders,

MNote 13 - Taxation

Under the cumrent laws of the Caymm Islmds, there are no meome, estide, trunster, sales or other tisces pivable by the Series
Trust or withholding tices applicable to the peyment by the Series Trust to the Unitholders or to the poyment of net ssset value
upE T'\epurvthm of Uniis.

The Trust has received m undemaking from the Cayvman Izlands Government exempling it from all local income, profits and
capilal gains teces until December 2, 2063, Mo aich tixes sre levied m the Cayman Islands af the present time, The Seres Trus
could incwr withholding taxes imposed by cortain countries on isvestment income md capital gaing. Such income or gain would
be recorded gross of withholding fnxes in the Statement of Operations. Withholding tnxes would be shown s 8 separube item in
the Statement of Operafions. No withholding tax expense was paid or pay able during the vear ended March 31, 2024

The Selected Fund may choose o invest in entities domiciled in countrics other than Cayman [ddandz. Many of these foreign
countrice have tmx laws which mdicate that capital gams teaxes may be gpplicable to non-residents including the Selected Fund

These capilal gaine taxes are mequired to be determined on a self-assessment basis and, therefore, such taces may not be
deducted by the Selected Fund's broker on a ‘withholding” basis.

14

130/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

U8 Dynamic Girowil

Notes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024 {continued)

Maote 13 - Taxathon (continued)

The Series Trust is required to recogniss ot liability when it i probable that the tex lmvs of foreign countries reqoire a fa
liability to be asseszed on the Seres Trast's copital gains sourced from such foreign country, assuming the relevant inxing
mutharities have full knowledge of all the facts and circumstances. The tax liability i= then meamred af the amount expected to
b penticd tor the relevant tascation authorities weing the fax laws and rates that have besn enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. There is sometimes uncertainty about the way enacted tax law i mplicd to offshore investment
Seriea Truste. This ereates sncertamnty about whether or not & tax liability wall ullimately be paid by the Series Trust. Therefore,
when messunng any uncertain iax lishilitics managem ent considers all of the relevant facte and circumstances mvailable at the
time which could influence the ikelihood of payment, mehidng any formal or informal practices of the rebevant tax authorities.

As gt March 31, 2024, the Manager has determined ihat the Series Trust did not have a liability to record for my mrecognised
ta benefit in the finsncial stafements. While this represents the Managers best estimate there remaing arisk ihat the foreign tax
avharities will attempt to collect taxes on capital gaane camed by the Series Tt This could happen without giving prior
warning, possibly on a retrospective basis, md could resull m o loss 1o the Series Trust

MNote 14 - Terms of subseriptions snd repurchaces

Initial Cfferimg Pericd

Investors mige subscribe for US Dollar Class Units during ihe Initiad Offering Period by sending a completed Application Form
{tagether with mipportmg documentation to verily such mvestor's identity, 88 =et out in the Applicaiion Form and source of
subscriplion monies) o the Administrator so @ (o be received by the Admmigrator by no lder than 1100 am. {Luxembourg
time) on the last day of the Initial Offering Period or by such other times and'or daye as the Manager may in it sole discretion
determine,

The subseription menies must be remiited in fill by tebegraphic transfer from an socount in the name af the applicant for the
account of the Series Trust for a cazh seitlement date on the Initial Closing Day. Payment mus be made in U5 Dollars. No third
party pavments will be accepled An meomplete Application Form may, in the diseretion of the Mmager, be held aver 1o the
first Dealing Dray following receipt of a completed Application Form and US Dollar Class Units will then be issued af the
relevant Met Asset Vabae per Unit on such Dealing Day.

S’ ent Subscrapd ions

Tnvestors wishing to subscribe for US Dollar Class Units on a Dealing Day on or after the Initial Closing Day. must send a
completed Application Form or a simplified subscrption form (o the case may bel, for the purchae of U5 Dollar Class Units
{{quhr with, of oot pmc\-'iwsh.‘ pn:vidﬂl, S'Lq_:lpuﬁhls documeéentafvon to 1.1rrir:|.' the :'drn!'ﬂy ol the u.[:p-h':m! wnd source af
subscriplion monies) 1o the Administraior so o2 to be received by the Admmigmtor by no later than 1000 am. (Luxembourg
time) oo the relevant Dealing Duay or by such other imes md/or days as the Maneger may i its sole discretion determme. An
incomplete Application Form may, m the discretion of the Manager, be held over to the fird Dealmg Day following receipt of a
completed Application Foomn wad Units will then be ssued @ the relevant Net Asset Vabie per Unit spplicable to such Dealmg
Dray.

The subseription menies must be pemiited in full by tebegraphic transfer from an socount in the name af the applicant for the
accoun! of the Series Trust for a cidh settlement dife on or before the dife three Business Days from md exclisding the relevint
Drealing Day. Pivment must be made in US Dollars. Mo thied pany payments will be accepled,

Repurchases

A Unitholder may moke o reparchase request to the Administrdor on ench Repurchase Day i respect of Units of o cluss of
Units for which subseription proceeds have been received by the Administraior. In osder 1o make a repurchase reques, &
Unitholder, must smbmi a completed repurchase notice (ihe “Repurchase MNotice™) to the Adminigrdor by facsimile to the
Tacammile number specified in the Reporchase Notice (notwithstanding, the Administrator may provide altemative method(z) 1o
such submssion.) specifying the number af Units and the rebevani class of Unils to be repurchased so as 1o be recerved by the
Administrator by no later than 11.00 am. (Luxenbonrg time) on the relevani Repurchase Diay, or by such other iime mdlor
days as the Mmager may, inits sole discretion, determme (the “Repurchase Notice Deadlme™).
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Notes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024 {continued)

Maote 14 - Terms of subscariptlons @i repurchases (continued)

Bepurchases {contimued)

The repurchise price per Unit wall be calculated as the Met Asset Value per Unit ws a the relevimt Repurchase Dy (or if tha
Bepurchase Dy & mod also o Vakiation Day then on the imm edintely precedmg Valation Day ) (the “Repurchase Price™),

The Repurchnse Notice once served is imevocable, unless the Manager, after consulinfion with the Trastee, determines
otherwize. The Manager may, in ifs sole discretion, hold over any Repurchase Notice received after the Repurchase Notice
Drendline wnhl the next following Reparchase Day wnd repurchase the relevint Unils s the rebevant Repurchase Price on tha
Repurchase Day.

Upon receipt of a Repurchase Motice by the Repurchase Wotice Deadline, and save ag desoribed below, the relevant Units will
be repurchazed @ the Repurchase Price, The minimam number of Units that may be the subject of a repurchisse reqoest by a
Unitholder on any Repurchase Day g8 1| Unit and thereadter in 1 Unit increments, enless the Manager determines otherwise.

In order fo comply with regulations aimed at the prevention of money laundering in sy applicable junsdiction, the
Adminisdritor reserves the night 1o request such mformation s it considers necessary m order to process any Repurchnse
Motice. The Administralor may refuse fo process mny Repurchese MNotice or delay payvment of repurchase proceeds if a
Unithelder mabmining Uniis for repurchaze delavs in producing or fmls to produce my mformabon required by the
Administrator or if such refusal i necessary to ensure the compliance by de Trastee or the Adminisirator with any anti-money
laandermg or law in any jurisdictson,

Where a Repurchase MNotice 12 sccepled, the Units wall be treated as having been repurchased with effect from the relevant
Repurchase Day imespective of whether or not such Unithelder has been removed from the Register or the Reparchase Price
has been determined or remitied. Accordingly, from the relevant Repurchase Day, Unitholders i ther copacity as sudh wall not
be atitled to or be capable of exercismg my rights arizing under the Trust Deed with respect to Units being repurchased
{mehuding any right 1o receive notice of, atend or vole o sy meeting of the Series Trug) soce the rght 1o receive the
Repurchase Price and any distribution which has been declared prior 1o the relevant Repurchazse Day bat ned yet paid (in each
case wilh respect to the Units being reparchased). Such repurchising Unitholders will be creditors of the Series Trust with
reepect to the Repurchase Price. In an insolvent liquidation, repurchasing Unitholders will rank behind ordinary creditors but
ahend of Unitholders,

Note 15 - Subsequent evenis

The Trustee has evaluated all subsequent mmsactions md events through August 23, 2024, the dase on which these finmcial
statements were minde avalable to be 1sued.

From April 1, 2024 to Augues 23, 2024, there were subseriplions of units of USD 1369408 md repurchases of units of
TS 8879944,

There are no other subsequent events to report as relies to the Series Trust,
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2025
110,614,722.08 16,524,733,332
121,552.30 18,158,698
110,493,169.78 16,506,574,633
915,392
120.71 18,033
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2025 735,000 10,980
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2025

2,131,369,846

10,946,968

15 70,562,599

33,254,467,383

2,999,020,334

12 103,184,856,918
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2024 12 31

2024 2023
4 170,000 25,396 185,000 27,637
4 62,322 9,310 60,009 8,965
232,322 34,707 245,009 36,602
4,340 648 6,390 955
9(c) 107,053 15,993 108,643 16,230
5,015 749 48 7
116,408 17,390 115,081 17,192
115,914 17,316 129,928 19,410
5 - - - -
115,914 17,316 129,928 19,410
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2024 2023
7 170,000 25,396 185,000 27,637
9(a) 864 129 864 129
6 1,955,991 292,205 2,249,019 335,981
2,126,855 317,731 2,434,883 363,747
9(b) 23,303 3,481 16,752 2,503
- - 428,396 63,998
4,339 648 6,436 961
27,642 4,129 451,584 67,462
2,099,213 313,601 1,983,299 296,285
8 735,000 109,802 735,000 109,802
1,364,213 203,800 1,248,299 186,483
2,099,213 313,601 1,983,299 296,285

Nicolas Henri Jean Papavoine
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2024 12 31

2023 735,000 109,802 1,118,371 167,073 1,853,371 276,875
- - 129,928 19,410 129,928 19,410

Sz 12 3 735,000 100,802 1,248,209 186,483 1,983,299 296,285
§ § 115,914 17,316 115,914 17,316

2024 12 31 735,000 109,802 1,364,213 203,800 2,099,213 313,601
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2024 2023
115,914 17,316 129,928 19,410
(62,436) (9,327) (60,034) (8,968)

53,478 7,989 69,894 10,441
15,000 2,241 20,000 2,988
6,551 979 (313,301) (46,804)
(428,396) (63,998) 428,39 63,998
(2,097) (313) 37 (6)
(355, 464) (53,103) 204,952 30,618
62,436 9,327 60,034 8,968
(293,028) (43,775) 264,986 39,586
(293,028) (43,775) 264,986 39,586

2,249,019 335,981 1,984,033 296,395

1,955,991 292,205 2,249,019 335,981

1,955,991 292,205 2,249,019 335,981
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Cap.22
2000
KY1-1104 309
Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.0. Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands

2023 12

22.48
37 5.1

2023 12
2024 31

2024
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2024 12 31

2024 2023
170,000 185,000
62,436 60,034
(114) (25)
62,322 60,009

2019 10 10 20

2024 2023

1,955,991 2,249,019
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2024 2023
170,000 185,000
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2024 12 31
10
©
12
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22,303 - - 22,303
22,303 - - 22,303
12
2023 12 31
16,752 - - 16,752
428,396 - - 428,396
445,148 - - 445,148
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAMN) LIMITED
(An exempled company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited Bability)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Mates 2024 2023
UsD UsD
REVENUE
Management fee income 4 170,000 185,000
Other incomes 4 652,322 60. 009
232322 245,009
EXPENSES
Audit fee 4340 6,390
Directors’ fee S(c) 107 053 108,643
Other expenses 5015 48
TOTAL EXPENSES 116,408 115081
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 115,914 120,928
Tax expense 5 = -
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AND TOTAL
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 115,914 120,928

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
3

159/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAN) LIMITED
{An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 2024

Notes 2024 2023
usD uso
ASSETS
Management fee receivable 7 170,000 185,000
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary 8(a) 864 864
Cash and cash eguivalents <] 1,965,081 2,249,018
Total assets 2,126,855 2,434 BB3
LIABILITIES
Amount due to an immediate holding company 8(b) 23,303 16,752
Directors’ fee payable - 428,396
Accruals 4,339 6,436
Total liabilities 27,642 451,584
NET ASSETS 2,099,213 1,983,299
EQUITY
Share capital B 735,000 735,000
Retained profits 1,364,213 1,248,288
Total equity 2,089,213 1,983,299

Micolas Hgfiri Jean Fapavoine
Direct

The accompanying notes form an irtegral part of these financial statements.
4
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempled company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited Bability)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IM EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Share Retained

capital profits Total

uspo usD Uso

At 1 January 2023 735,000 1,118,371 1,853,3T1
Prafit for the year and total comprehensive

income for the year - 129,928 129,928

At 31 Decemnber 2023 and 1 January 2024 735,000 1,248,293 1,983,299
Prafit for the year and total comprehensive

income for the year - 115.914 115,914

At 31 December 2024 735,000 1,364,213 2,088,213
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAN) LIMITED
(An exempled company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited Gability)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Mote 2024 2023
usD usD
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 115914 129928
Adjustments for:
Interest income (62,436} 160,034)
53,478 CERER
Decrease in management fee recenvable 15,000 20,000
Increase/(decrease) in amount due to an immediate
holding company 6,551 {313,301}
{Decrease)/ increase in directors” fee payable (428,398) 428 396
Decrease in accruals {2.087) (37}
Cash (used in)generated from operating aclivities (355, 464) 204 952
Interest income received 62,436 0034
Met cash flows (used in)fgensrated
from operating activities (293.028) 264 986
NET ([DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (293,028) 264 986
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 2,249 018 1,984,033
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 1,955,991 2.249.019
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 6 1,853,981 2,248 018

The accompanying note form an integral part of these financial statements.
&
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited Bability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

g CORPORATE INFORMATION

UBS Management {(Cayman) Limited (the “*Company’) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 4 January 2000 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act, Cap 22 of the Cayman Islands. The Company's registered office is Maples
Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY 1-1104,
Cayman Islands.

The Company's principal activities are the creation of trusts and the administration and
management of assels in trusts.

on 12 June 2023, UBS Group AG acquired Credit Suisse Group AG, succeading by
operation of Swiss law o all assels and liabilities of Credit Suisse Group AG, and became
the direct or indirect shareholder of all of the former drect and indirect subsidiaries of Credit
Suisse Group AG (the “Transaction”). The Company was one of the indirect subsidiaries of
Credit Suisse Group AG included in this Transaction,

Upeon the completion of the Transaction, each oulstanding, registered Credit Suisse share
converted ta the right to receive, subject to the payment of certain fees to the Credit Suisse
depository in the case of Credit Suisse American depository shares, the merger
consideration consisting of /22428 UBS Group AG shares. In aggregate, Credit Suisse
shareholders received 5.1% of the cutstanding UBS Group AG shares on the acquisition
date, with a purchase price of USD3.7 billion,

In December 2023, the Board of Directors of UBES Group AG approved the merger of UBS
AG and Credit Suisse AG, and bath entities entered into a definitive merger agreement, The
merger is completed on 31 May 2024,

On 1 March 2024, the Beard of Directors has approved to change the name from Credit
Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited) to UBS Management (Cayman) Limited.

The ultimate holding company is UBS Group AG, & company incorporated in Switzerdand.
The directors regarded Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited as the immediate holding
company and UBS AG as the intermediate holding company.

21  BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards issued by Intermnational Accounting Standards Beard ("|ASE’). These
financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, excepl for inanciel assets
and liabilities held at fair value through profit o loss, which have been measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS Accounting Standards
requires management to meke judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of poficies and reported amounts of assets, labilities, income and expenses, The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the resuits of which form
the basis of making the judgements about camying values of assets and liablities that are
mot readily apparent from other sources, Actual results may differ from these estimates.

163/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited Rability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

21  BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

These financial statements are presented in United States Dollars ("USD™) and all values are
rounded tothe nearest USD, except where otherwise indicated.

The statement of financial position presents assets and liabilities in order of liquidity and does
not distinguish between current and non-current items.

Certain prior pericd comparative figures are reclassified to conform with current vear
presentation.

22  CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The accounting principles adopted in the current period are consistent with those of the prior
year, There are no other standards, interpretations or amendments to existing standards that
are effective for the current financial period that have a material impact on the Company.

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The Company has not early applied any of the new and revised IFRS Accounting Standards
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the accounting year ended 31 December
2024 in these financial satements. Among the new and revised IFRS Accounting Standards,
the following is expected to be relevant to the Company's financial statements upon
becoming effective:

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

In April 2024, the 1ASE issued IFRS 18, which replaces 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial
Stafernents. IFRS 18 intreduces new requirements for presentation within the statement of
profit or loss, including specified totals and subtotals. Furtthermore, entities are required to
classify all income and expenses within the statement of profit or loss inte one of five
categories: operating, investing, financing, income taxes and discontinued operations,
whereof the first three are new.

It also requires disclosure of newly defined management-defined performance measures,
subtotals of income and expenses, and includes new requirements for aggregation and
disaggregation of financial informalion based on the identified ‘roles’ of the pimary financial
statements (PFS) and the notes,

In addition, narow-scope amendments have been made (o IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows,
which include changing the starting point for determining cash flows from operations under
the indirect method, from 'profit or loss” o ‘operating profit o |oss' and remowving the
optionality around classification of cash flews from dividends and interest, In addition, there
are consequential amendments to several other standards, IFRS 18, and the amendments
tothe other standards, is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027,
but earlier application is permitted and must be disclosed. IFRS 18 will apply retrospectively.

The Company is currentty working to identify all impacts the amendments will have on the
primary financial statements and notes to the financial statements.

164/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited Rability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

23 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (continued)

Lack of exchangeability — Amendments to |1AS 21

In August 2023, the |ASE issued amendments to 1AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foregn
Exchange Rates to specify how an enfity should assess whether a currency is exchangeable
and how it should determine a spot exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking. The
amendments also require disclosure of information that enables users of its financial
statements to understand how the currency not being exchangeable into the other currency
affects, or is expected toaffect, the entity’s financial performance, financial position and cash
flows.

The amendments will be effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2025, Early adoption is permitted. but will need to be disclosed, When applying the
amendments, an entity cannol restate comparative information.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial
statements.

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Company if;
a) The party is a person or a close member of that person's family and that person.
il has contrad or joint control over the Company,
i) has significant influence over the Company; or
i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or of a parent of
the Company;

b} The party is an entity where any of the following condition applies:

i} the entity and the Company are members of the same group;

ii) one entity is an associate or joint ventures of the ather entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

ilij} the entity and the Company are joint ventures of the same third parly,

iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and cther entity is an associate of the
third entity;

v} the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of empioyees of either
the Company or an entity related to the Company,

wi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

vii) a person identified in (a)ii) has significant influence over the entity or is a member
ofthe key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

wiii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a pard, provides key
management personnel services to the Company or to the parent of the
Company,
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024
3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial posttion comprise cash on hand and
at banks, and short-term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of generally within three
meonths that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value and held for the purpose of meeting short- berm cash commitments.

For the purpose of the staternent of cash flows, cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash
on hand and at banks, and shaor-term depeosits, as defined above, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash management.

(i) Classification
In accordance with IFRS 9. the Company classifies its financial assets and financial
[iabilities at initial recognition into the categories of inancial assets and financial liabilities
discussed below.

In applying that classification, a financial asset of financial liability is considered to be

held for trading if;

{a)lt is acquired or mcurmred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the
near tem, or

(b)Cn initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which, there is evidence of a recent actual pattermn of short-
term profit-taking, or

(chlit is a derivative (edcept for a dervative that is a financial guarantes contract or a
designated and effective hedging instrurment)

Financial assels

The Company classifies its financial assets as subseguently measured at amortised cost
or measured at FWVPL on the basis of both:

+ The entity's business model for managing the financial assets

+ The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business rmodel
whose chjective is to hold financial assets in order o collect contractual cash flows and
its contraciual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are soledy payments
of principal and interest ("SPPI") an the principal amount cutstanding. The Company
includes in this category shod-term non-financing receiables.

ancial assets measired al fair va hrough profit or lass CFVP

Afinancial assel is measured at FWPL if:

(a)lts contractual terms do not give nise to cash flows on specified dates that are SPFI
on the principal amount cutstanding; o

(L)t is not held within a business model whose objective is either (o collect contractual
cash flows, or to both collect contractual cash flows and sell; or

{chAL initial recognition, it is irrevocably designated as measured at FWYPL when doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would ctherwise arise from measuring assels or liabilities or recognising the gains
and losses on them on different bases.

10
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited Rability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{continued)
(i} Classification (continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial abilities measured at FVPL

A financial Bability is measured at FVPL if it mests the definition of held for trading or is
designated as measured at FWPL upon initial recognition.

Financial labilities measured at amortised cost
This category includes all financial liabilities, other than those measured at FAVPL, The
Company includes in this category amounts relating to short-term payables.

(il) Recognition
The Coempany recognises a financial asset or a financial liability when, and only when, it
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades)
are recognised on the trade date. i.e., the date that the Company commis to purchase
or sell the assel,

(iii} Initial measurement
Financial assets and financial hiabilties at far value through profit or loss are recorded in
the statement of financial position at fair value. All transaction costs for such instruments
are recognised directly in profit o loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial assets and financial babiliies (other than those classified as at fair value
through profit or loss) are measured initially at their fair value plus amy directly attributable
incremental costs of acguisition or issue.

(iv) Subsequent measurement

After initial measurement, the Company measures fimancial instruments which are
classified as at fair value through profit or loss at fair value, Subsequent changes in the
fair value of those financial instruments are recorded in net gains of losses on financial
assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Interest and dividends earned or paid on these instruments are
recorded separately in interest income or expense and dividend income or expense in
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Debt instruments, other than those classified as at fair value through profit of loss, are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any allowance for

impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the debt instruments
cost are derecognised of impaired, as well as through the amaortisation process.

1"
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited Rability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(iv) Subsequent measurement (continuad)

The effective interest method ("EIR™) is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financal asset o a financial liabilty and of allocating the interest income of interest
expense over the relevant pericd. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument o, when appropriate, a shorter year to the net carndng amount of
the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Company estimates cash flows considering all contractusl terms of the financial
instruments. but does not consider expected credit losses ("ECL"). The calculation
includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate, fransaction costs and all other premiums of discounts.

(v} Derecognition
A, financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is derecognised where:
+ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
+ The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a "pass through” arangement and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the assat.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered inte & “pass-through" arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the assel nor transferred control of the asset,
the assel is recognised to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the
asset. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The fransferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on & basis that reflects the rights and
cbligations that the Company has retained.

The Company derecognises a financial liability when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or expired.

12

168/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024
3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Company holds only short-termn receivables with no financing component and which
have maturities of less than 12 months at amortised cost and, as such, has chosen to apply
an approach similar to the simplified approach for expected credit losses ("ECL™) under IFRS
9 to all its receivables. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. but
instead, recoanises a [oss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

The Company's approach to ECLs reflects a probability-weighted cutcome, the time value of
meney and reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or
effert at the reporting date about past events, curent conditions and forecasts of fulure
economic conditions.

The Company uses the provision matrix as a practical expedient to measuring ECLS on
receivables, based on days past due for groupings of recelvables with similar loss patterns.
Receivables are grouped based on their nature. The provision malrix is based on historical
observed loss rates over the expected life of the receivables and is adusted for forward-
looking estimates.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures s investment in financial instruments at fair value at each repoding
dale,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
of transfer the liability takes place either in the princpal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible tothe Company.

The fair value for financial instruments traded in active markets at the reporting date is based
on their market gqucted price within the bidfask price or broker quatations which could be
indicative prices, without any deduction for transaction costs. Secunties defined in these
accounts as listed’ are traded in an active market,

For all other financial instrurments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined
by using valuation techniques deemed to be appropriate in the circumstances. Valuation
technigues include the market approach (i.e., using recent arm's length market fransactions
adusied as necessary and reference tothe current market value of ancther instrument that
is substantially the same) and the income appreach (i.e., discounted cash flow analysis and
oplion pricing models making as much use of available and supportable market data as
possible).

13
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{continued)
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categonsed within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows:

Level 1 - Cuoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
wvalue measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurming basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing the categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the beginning of each reporting peried,

Erovisions
A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a
result of a past event and it is probable that a future cutfiow of rescurces will be required to
settle the ocbligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
abligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is the
present value at the end of the reporting perod of the future expenditures expected to be
required to seftle the chligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in the statement of profit or loss.

MILIE F iti
Reveniue from confracts with clients
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the control of goods or services
is transferred to the customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Company expects to be entiled in exchange for those goods or services,

(a) Management fee
Management fee income is recognised over time because the customer simultanecusly
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company.

Other income

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by
apphing the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial insirument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net camying
amount of the financial asset,

i ional
These financial statements are presented in United States dollar, which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency.

14
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are translated into the functional currency of
the reporting unit at the spat exchange rate on the date of the transadtion. At the end of the
reporting pericd, all monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are
translated to the functional currency using the closing exchange rate. Differences arising on

settlement or translation of monetary tems are recognised in profit or loss.

Meon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency shall
be translated using the exchange rates at the date of the initial transactions. Mon-monetary
iterns measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was measured The gain or loss arising on franslation of a
non-manetary iterm measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or

loss on change in fair value of the item.

Expenses
All expenses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss on an accrual basis.

4. REVEMUE AND OTHER INCOMES

The principal activities of the Company are the creation of frusts and the administration and
management of assets in trusts. Total revenue and other income recognised during the year

are as follows:
2024
ush

Revenue:
Management fee income

2023
usD

170,000 185.000

Other incomes include the following:

Bank interest income 62 436 60,034
Foreign exchange differences, net (114} (25)
52,322 60,009

The performance cbligation for management fee income is satisfied over lime as sernvices

are rendered,

a TAXATION

There are no taxes on income or gains in the Cayman Islands and the Company has received
an undertaking from the Governor in Council of the Cayman Islands exempling it from all
local income, profits and capital taxes for a period of 20 vears from 10 October 2015,

Accordingly, no provision for income faxes is included in these financial statements,
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

B. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALIENTS

2024 2023
UsD UsD
Cash at bank 1,955,991 2.249.019

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The camying
amount of the cash at bank approximate to their fair values.

T MANAGEMEMNT FEE RECEIVAELES

2024 2023
uso usD
Management fed receivables 170,000 185000

Meone of the above assets is either past due or impaired, The financial assets included in the
above balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent history of default,

8. SHARE CAPITAL

2024 2023
UsD usD
Izsued and fully paid:
735000 (2023: 735,000) ordinary shares
of USD1 (2023 USD1) each 735,000 735.000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitied torecenve dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. All ondinary
shares rank egqually with regard to the Company's residual assets.

Capital management

The Company’s primary cbjectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's
ability to continue as a going concermn so that it can continue to provide retumns to
shareholders, by pricing services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost. As the Company is part of a larger group, the
Company's sources of additional capital and pdlicies for distribution of excess capital may
also be affected by the group’s capital management objectives. The Company defines
“capital” as including all components of equity,

The Company's capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard to the
capital management practices of the group to which the Company belongs, Adjustments are
made to the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the
Company of the group, to the extent that these do not conflict with the directors’ fiduciary
duties towards the Comparny.

The Company was not sublect to externally imposed capital requirements in the current
period,
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considerad to be related if cne party has the ability to contrd the cther party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.

Qutstanding balances with related partles
The Company has the following cutstanding balances due fromfitc) related companies as at

the end of reporing period:
Moles 2024 2023
usD usD
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary {a) 864 564
Amount due to an immediate holding company (B (23.303) {16,752)

(&) The amount due from a fellow subsidiary represents expenses paid by the Company on
behalf of Credit Suisse (Singapore) Limited. It is unsecured, interest-free and has no
fixed terms of repayment.

(by The amount due to an immediate holding company represents expenses paid by Credit
Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited on behalf of the Company. It is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

Transactions with related parties
Except as disdosed elsewhere in the financial statements, during the year ended 31
December 2024, the Company had the following matenal transactions with related paries:

Motes 2024 2023
uso usD

Compensation of key management personnel
of the Company ic) 107,053 108,643

{c) The details of the remuneration of the directors, being the key management personnel
defined as a related party of the Company
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

10.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's investing activities expose it bo various types of risk that are asscciated with
the financial instrumenis and markets in which it invests. The most impotdant types of
financial risk to which the Company is exposed are market risk, credit and counterparty risk
and Bquidity risk. Market risk includes foreign currency risk and interest rate risk. The
directors oversee the management of these risks.

The nature and extent of the financial instruments cutstanding at the end of reporting period
and the risk management palicies empleyed by the Company are discussed below.

(&) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from uncertainty conceming moverments in market
prices and rates, including cbservable variables such as interest rates, credit spreads,
exchange rates, and others that may be only indirectly observable such as volatilities
and correlations. Market risk includes such factors as changes in economic
emnvironment, consumption pattern and investors' expectation etc. which may have
significant impact on the value of the investments. Market moverment may therefore
result in substantial fluctuation in the financial posifion of the Company,

Foreign cumency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through certain transactions
which give rise to payables that are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Since the Hong
Kong Dollars is pegged to the USD, the Company's exposure to foreign currency risk
in respect of the invoices and expenses denominated in USD is considered to be
minimal,

Interest rale risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk only to the extent that it earns bank
interest on cash at bank. At 31 December 2024 and 2023, a change in interest rates
would have no direct material effect on the carnying value of the recognised assets or
lizbalities of the Company.

(by Credit and counterparty risk

Credit and counterparty risk is the nsk of loss resulting from client o counterparty
default and arises on credit exposure in all forms, including seftlement risk. The
Company's credit and counterparty risk is primarily atiributable (o cash and cash
equivalents and amounts due from related companies. The Company's management
regularly menitors the credit and counterparty risk of all the financial assets. It is
considered that they are not past due or impaired for each of the reporting dates under
review. Mone of the Company’s financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit
enhancements.

The directors considered the credit and counterparty risk as minimal since the
Company's clients are the Company's related companies.
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

10, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(¢)  Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the nisk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to
meet commitments associated with financial liabilities. The Company's strategy is to
minimise its exposure to liquidity risk by monitoring the Company's liquid capital from
tirne to time and by obtaining funds from parfners whene necessary,

The follewing table summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financal liabilities
based on contractual undiscounted payments. Balances due within one year equal their
carrying amaounts, as the impact of discounting is insignificant, The table alse analyses
the maturity profile of the Company's finandal assets {undiscounted where appropriate)
in order to provide a complete view of the Company's confractual commitments and
liquidity.

Financial liabilities
The maturity grouping is based on the remaining pericd from the end of the reporting
period to the contractual maturity date. When a counterparty has a choice of when the
ameunt is paid, the liability is allocated tothe earliest period in which the Company can
be reguired to pay.

Financial agsels

The analysis into maturity groupings is based on the remaining pericd from the end of
the reporting pericd to the contractual maturity dake or, if earlier, the expected date on
which the assets will be realised.

On Less than 12 M
demand 3 months manths maturity Total
LD ush uso Ush usp
31 Decermber 2024
Financial labiltes
Amounts due to the
immediate holding
company 22303 - - - 22 303
22,303 - - = 22,303
On Less than Itei2 Mo
demand 3 months months maturity Total
LD uso uso UsD usD
31 December 2023
Financial liabiltms
Amounts due to the
immediate holding
company 16.752 . . . 16,752
Directors’ fee
payable 428,396 = - - 428,356
445,148 - - - 445 148
19

175/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

11.

UMCONSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITIES

The Company considers itself the sponsor of 2 structured entity when either its name appears
in the name of the structured entity or in products issued by it or there is a general expectation
from the market that the Company is associated with the structured entity o the Company
was involved in the design or set up of the structured enfity and has a form of involvement
with the structured entity.

The below unconsclidated structured entities are sponsored by the Company where a fixed
annual management fee of USDS5,000 (2023: USDS,000) each is received but no interest is
held by the Company as at 31 December 2024,

Australian High Dividend Equity Twin Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
US REIT Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Frincipal / CS Canadian Equity Income Fund (For Qualified institutional Investors Only)
Global REIT Triple Premiumn Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)®

US Preferred REIT Income Fund {For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)*

Japan Equity Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

MEMNMYAM US REIT Income Fund (For Qualified Instituticnal Investors Cnly)*

Daiwa UK High Dividend Equity Fund (For Qualified Institutional Inwestors Cnly)®
Brazil Equity Alpha Fund {For Qualified Institutional Imvestors Cnly)

Daiwa Brazitian Real Bond Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Missay Japan Equity Active Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

AMP Australia REIT Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Onbky)

J-REIT and Real Estate Equity Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Cnly)

Daiwa American High Dividend Equity Quattro Income Fund (For Qualified Insttutional
Investors Only)

Daiwa American REIT Quattro Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
Shinsel World Wrap Stable Type (For Qualified institutional Investors Only)

US REIT Triple Engine Plus Fund {For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

US Municipal Bond Fund

Tokio Marine CAT Bond Fund*

Global High Dividend Equity Premium Fund {For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
Meister's Collection

PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund

FIMCC Short Term Strategy

Daiwa J-REIT Covered Call Fund {For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Foreign Currency Denominated Man AHL Smart Leverage Strategy Fund

SBI PICTET Asia Hi-Tech \Venture Fund

AUD Shart Term Bond Fund

Insight Alpha

US Dynamic Growth

Fremium Camy Strategy Fund

BSMD Glcbal Advantage

Draiwa Wil Ventures lll, L.P. Fund

Japan Equity Premium Strategy Fund

Global Select Carry Strategy Fund

* The funds were terminated during 2024,
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

11, UNCOMSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITIES (continued)

The Company has not provided financial or other support to unconsdidated structured
entities that it was not contractually required to provide.

The Company does not currently hawve the intention to provide financial or other support to
unconsolidated structured entities that is not contractually required to provide.

12, APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
an 21 May 2025,
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(Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited)

2025 100 4,939

2022 11

S.A. (Nomura Bank (Luxembourg) S.A.)

S_.A. 2025 28,000,000
48
2025 31
170.75
S_A. L-5826
33
société anonyme 1990
UBS
2024 12 449

JSDA

JSDA
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Aktiengesellschaft

17,710
2001 2002
2003
1,350
(UBS AG, London Branch)
8,600 576 6,454
1978 28
1998
1862 1872
CHE-101.329.561
NYSE
NYSE
UBS UBS 100

UBS
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1998
BRO04507
EC2M  2QS

2025 171

1997 10 1959
1981

(Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited)

S.A. (Nomura Bank (Luxembourg) S.A.)

UBS
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(UBS AG, London Branch)

UBS UBS
UBS
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1.1 1993
1.2
1960
1.3
1993
2020
2020
1.4
1.5 2022 12
12,995 3,224
2020
2020
1.6
2.1
2.2

184/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2.3

2.4

2.5 2020

15

2.6

3.1

3.2
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4.3
21
4.4 2006 12 27 2006
5.1
5.2
48
5.3

3.2

5.4 10
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KPMG LLP
P.0. Box 493
SIX Cricket Square, Grand Cayman KY1-1106, Cayman Islands
+1 345 949 4800
+1 345 949 7164
URL www.kpmg.com/ky

UBS 11
11 Us
2024 31

2024
31

GAAP

1SA

1ESBA
IESSA

GAAP
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KPMG LLP

P.0. Box 493

SIX Cricket Square
Grand Cayman KY1-1106
Cayman Islands

Tel +1 345 949 4800
Fax +1 345 949 7164
Web www_kpmg.com/ky

Independent Auditors®™ Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of US Dynamic Growth (the““Series Trust””), a
series-trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111 (formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust
(Cayman) I11) (the““Trust””) which comprise the statement of net assets including the
statement of investments as at March 31, 2024, the statements of operations and changes in
net assets for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Series Trust as at March 31, 2024, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Luxembourg
generally accepted accounting principles applicable to the investment funds (““Luxembourg
GAAP?”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (““1SAs””).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the““Auditors”
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements”” section of our report. We are
independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (““IESBA Code””) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditors®™ Report to the Trustee (continued)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Luxembourg GAAP, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust"s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Series Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust"s financial
reporting process.

Auditors " Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors® report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
fromerror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust"s internal control.
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Independent Auditors® Report to the Trustee (continued)

Auditors " Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management”s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust"s ability to continue
as a going concern. ITwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors” report to the related disclosures in the financial statementsor, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors” report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

August 23, 2024
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KPMG LLP

P.0. Box 493

SIX Cricket Square
Grand Cayman KY1-1106
Cayman Islands

Tel +1 345 949 4800
Fax +1 345 949 7164
Web www_kpmg.com/ky

Independent Auditors® Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of US Dynamic Growth (the““Series Trust””), a
series-trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 11l which comprise the statement of net assets,
including statement of investments as at March 31, 2025, the statements of operations,
changes in net assets for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Series Trust as at March 31, 2025, and its financial
performance for the year then ended in accordance with Luxembourg generally accepted
accounting principles (““Luxembourg GAAP”?).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (““I1SAs™7).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the““Auditors”
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements””section of our report. We are
independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (““IESBA Code””) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with Luxembourg GAAP, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

214/221



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series
Trust™s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust®s financial
reporting process.

Auditors® Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors”™ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with I1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the fin ancial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust"s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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- Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series
Trust"s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors® report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors® report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

July 31, 2025
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Independent auditor ®s report
To the sole member of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited (the "Company™),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024 and of its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by
International Accounting Standards Board (““IASB”~).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs™). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code') issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company®s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Independent auditor *s report (continued)
To the sole member of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Company"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent auditor *s report (continued)
To the sole member of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors™ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company"s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor™s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
21 May 2025
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